Answers to Industry Comments/Questions on the Draft Wallops Institutional Consolidated Contract (WICC) II Draft Statement of Work, dated 9/23/2011 (updated 3/30/2012), draft Request for Proposals Posted 3/30/2012 and final Request for Proposals dated 8/21/2012
October 2, 2012
420.  Technical Library Files - Historical Other Direct Cost Average Last 2 Years, File Name: Labor hrs by category.xlsx, The Historical ODC average for the last two years file lists the value of material and other direct costs. It does not provide the types of material and quantities purchased.  

          a. Question: Is the detailed information (i.e. item description, quantities etc.) that makes up the values for each of the cost elements available and can it be provided to the Offerors in order to help identify the bill of material that must be prepared in order to complete Exhibit 6? 
               Answer:  The historical ODC information that has been included in the technical library located at http://code210.gsfc.nasa.gov/wicc_followon/Home.html will be updated to provide 5 years of data including vehicle expense.  Unfortunately the Government does not have a breakout which details specific types of materials and quantities purchased.
          b. Question:  Please confirm the values contained within the file are associated only with the core services.


   Answer:  The Historical ODC’s provided are based on Core Services only.
510. Reference: SOW, page 12, 1.2.9 Performance, Reliability, and Quality, second paragraph, first sentence.  This sentence states, “The QAP shall meet the requirements of GPR 1280.1, The GSFC Quality Manual, for the following portions of the WICC:  receiving project controlled and Government procured equipment and material; requirements of SOW 15.6 and 15.6.2.”

a. Question: Please clarify the punctuation of this sentence. A semi-colon separates "receiving project controlled and Government procured equipment and material" from "requirements of SOW 15.6 and 15.6.2" implying the two clauses are equal; however, we suspect this really just a reference to one requirement item and not two.

  
Answer:  SOW 1.2.9 sentence referenced is a single requirement that applies to functions performed under SOW 15.6 RECEIVING and SOW 15.6.2 RECEIPT OF GOVERNMENT ITEMS.  

b. Question: SOW 15.6 encompasses SOW 15.6.2. Please clarify; does this requirement pertain to all of SOW 15.6 or just 15.6.2, or some other combination of SOW 15.6.x requirements?

  Answer:  SOW 15.6 is the introduction to the section.  SOW 15.6.1 and SOW 15.6.2 are separate requirements.  The quality requirements do not apply to SOW 15.6.1.  For clarification purposes the RFP will be amended to revise SOW 1.2.9 from: The QAP plan shall meet the requirements of GPR 1280.1, The GSFC Quality Manual, for the following portions of the WICC:  receiving project controlled and Government procured equipment and material; requirements of SOW 15.6 and 15.6.2 to:  The QAP plan shall meet the requirements of GPR 1280.1, The GSFC Quality Manual, for the following portions of the WICC:  receiving Government procured equipment and material that are project controlled which are requirements of SOW 15.6 and 15.6.2. The RFP will be amended to revise SOW 1.2.9 as follows: 

   From: The QAP plan shall meet the requirements of GPR 1280.1, The GSFC Quality Manual, for the following portions of the WICC:  receiving project controlled and Government procured equipment and material; requirements of SOW 15.6 and 15.6.2
   To:  The QAP plan shall meet the requirements of GPR 1280.1, The GSFC Quality Manual, for the following portions of the WICC:  receiving Government procured equipment and material that are project controlled which are requirements of SOW 15.6 and 15.6.2.
582.  Reference: Equipment List in Technical Library

        Question: The Equipment list in tech library lists equipment assets that are not the same quantities as shown in the Appendix to Statement of Work Attachment J2.  As an example the Attachment J-2 quantities for SOW section 3.4 are compared to the equipment list quantities in the table below and in some instances the numbers are very different.  There are similar disparities in other SOW three sections.  Should contract use the equipment list quantities or the J-2 quantities for the basis of estimating the proposal pricing?  

	Appendix II
	NASA Equipment List Quantity in Tech Library
	SOW Attachment J-2 NASA Equipment Quantity
	Navy Equipment List  Quantity in Tech Library
	SOW Attachment J-2 Quantity

	Air compressors
	68
	0
	0
	0

	Backflow Prevention Device
	69
	87
	8
	20

	Boilers Fuel  Oil
	89
	20
	1
	14

	Boiler LP Gas
	65
	82
	0
	1

	Various Water Pumps
	118
	445
	16
	0

	Sewage Pumps
	47
	0
	10
	0

	Pumps Lift Station
	19
	20
	0
	0

	Fire Hydrants
	145
	153
	0
	0

	Fire Pumps
	8
	5
	0
	0

	Above Ground Storage Tank Oil/Fuel
	41
	29
	0
	0

	Above ground storage tanks Water
	5
	6
	0
	0

	Underground storage Tanks Fuel /Oil
	1
	0
	13
	12


  Answer:  Note:  some of the quantities for Attachment J-2 presented in the question are not correct.  For example, rather than zero air compressors as reflected in the chart in the above question under the column, SOW Attachment J-2 NASA Equipment Quantity, the quantities can be found in Section 3.6.3 Air Compressor (non-HVAC type) of Attachment J-2. 

3.6.3      Air Compressors (non-HVAC type)
	Core Data (NASA)

	15 to 25 hp:  8 +/-  1
6 to 10 hp: 4 +/-  1
5 hp: 12 +/-  1
< 4 hp: 57 +/-  5

	 Core Data (Navy)

	5 – 20 hp:  10 +/-  1


 Rather than zero sewage lift pumps as reflected in the chart in the question above under the column, SOW Attachment J-2 NASA Equipment Quantity, the quantities can be found in Section 3.6.3 Air Compressor (non-HVAC type) of Attachment J-2. 
           3.7.4      Wastewater (Sewage and Storm Water) Systems
	 Core Data (NASA)

	Wastewater Treatment Plant:  1 +/- 1
Miles of sewage piping:  24 mi +/- 1 mi
Sewage Lift Pumps:  20 +/- 0
Storm Water Piping:  17 mi +/- 1 mi
Storm Water Structures:  700 +/- 10
Ditches/Swales:  19  mi +/- 1 mi
Storm Water Outfalls:  23 +/- 3


Offerors must use the quantities provided in the Request for Proposal (RFP) under Attachment J-2, Appendix to the Statement of Work, as the basis of estimating the proposal pricing.  Information posted in the Technical Library is provided as historical information and/or in response to Offerors requests.  The quantities in the Technical Library might not exactly match those provided under Attachment J-2 for various reasons, such as; changes from older to new Statement of Work requirements, inventory dates, and individual items in the library might be considered part of an overall system, etc.  The information provided in the Technical Library is for Information Purposes Only.

592.  Question:   The solicitation included the WICC II Surveillance Plan (146923-SOL-001-032). The RFP also included Attachment J-13, Incentive Fee Plan (146923-SOL-001-030), which included Appendix 1, Incentive Fee Quality Assurance Surveillance Plan. We can find no specific reference to the WICC II Surveillance Plan document (SOL-001-032) in the RFP. In what context will the WICC II Surveillance Plan be used during performance?
         Answer:   The surveillance plan is for information purposes only.  The purpose of this plan is to define the overall approach the Government intends to use to monitor and survey both core services and Indefinite Delivery/Indefinite Quantity (IDIQ) Task Order performance under the Wallops Institutional Consolidated Contract (WICC) II.  This plan defines the process the Government expects to follow to obtain data, evaluate the Contractor, and determine if contract performance is acceptable.

593.  Question:   Solicitation section L.23.3 Mission Suitability, Subfactor B – Contract Management Approach, paragraph 8 (page 159), states “Additionally, identify any implementation or ongoing costs associated with each proposed innovation, techniques, technologies, etc, which must be included in the proposed cost for the core requirements.” Because of prohibitions against including cost in Mission Suitability volumes, is it correct that cost categories are to be identified in the Mission Suitability (Volume II) and their associated cost amounts are to be provided in the Cost Volume (Volume III)?

         Answer:  Correct. The cost categories are to be identified in the Mission Suitability (Volume II) and their associated cost amounts are to be provided in the Cost Volume (Volume III). 
594. Question:  Attachment 12, Appendix to Statement of Work, paragraph 3.2.1, Operations, Maintenance & Repair, Electrical Distribution System.  Information provided in this chart states that there are 36 miles of NASA Electrical Distribution System lines.  What is the breakdown between overhead electrical lines and direct burial lines?  How many power poles are associated with the overhead electrical distribution lines?

          Answer:   Per SOW 3.3.1 Medium Voltage 12470 / 7200 Volts, “The electrical distribution system on WFF is an aerial and underground system. The aerial section of the system at the Main Base consists of 2 electric utility poles.  The aerial section of the system at the Mainland and Island consists of 2 electric utility poles. The remaining electric distribution system at both locations is an underground system either encased in raceways or is direct buried.”  Per SOW 3.3.2 Medium Voltage 2400 / 1300 Volts, “The 2400/1300 volt distribution system is a 3 phase 4 wire underground electrical distribution system that provides electricity to the airfield lighting system and is located on the Main Base.”  There are approximately 400 feet or less of overhead lines associated with the 4 electric utility poles of the total 36 miles of NASA electrical distribution system lines.
 
595. Question:   SOW 1.2.7 states “The Contractor shall also work with each Integrated Product Team (IPT) to develop a charter and participate in monthly IPT meetings for each SOW area.” Are IPTs Government, WICC II contractor, or other contractor led?

          Answer:  Integrated Product Teams (IPTs) are Government led.
 
596.  Question:  SOW 1.2.7 states “The Contractor shall also work with each Integrated Product Team (IPT) to develop a charter and participate in monthly IPT meetings for each SOW area.” Can the Government provide a listing of anticipated IPTs for which the WICC II contractor will be involved?

         Answer:  In accordance with the surveillance plan posted to NAIS at http://prod.nais.nasa.gov/cgi-bin/eps/sol.cgi?acqid=146923#Other%2006, it is anticipated that there will be an IPT for each SOW WBS Level 3 (SOW 1, 2, 3, etc.) comprised of NASA and Navy personnel along with WICC II functional personnel.
 
597.  Question:   Is NPR 7120.5 applicable to NASA WFF / WICC II activities or projects involving flight systems?

          Answer: The WICC II Contractor is currently not expected to perform any work that would implicate NPR 7120.5, entitled “NASA Space Flight Program and Project Management Requirements.”
 
598.  Question:   Is NPR 7120.7 applicable to NASA WFF / WICC II activities or projects involving institutional infrastructure and/or information technology?

         Answer:  Yes.  NPR 7120.7, NASA Information Technology and Institutional Infrastructure Program and Project Management Requirements, is applicable and it can be found in the Information Technology (IT) Security Applicable Documents List, Attachment J-15 to the RFP.  However, Offerors are advised that NPR 7120.7 is under revision and is currently replaced by NID 7120.99, NASA Information Technology and Institutional Infrastructure Program and Project Management Requirements, which will be uploaded to the technical library located at http://code210.gsfc.nasa.gov/wicc_followon/Home.html by 10/3/12.  Attachment J-15 will be revised in Amendment 2 to delete NPR 7120.7 and to add NID 7120.99.
 
600.  Question:  Can the government provide the seniority list of personnel currently employed under the Firefighters CBA?

         Answer:    We are not able to provide a Firefighters seniority list; however, the Offerors can request the information from the incumbent.  
 
601.  Question: Can the government provide the seniority list of personnel currently employed under the Logistics CBA?

         Answer:  We are not able to provide a Logistics Services seniority list; however, the Offerors can request the information from the incumbent.  

602.  Question:  Can the government provide the seniority list of personnel currently employed under the O&M CBA?

           Answer:  We are not able to provide a seniority list of personnel currently employed under the O&M CBA; however, the Offerors can request the information from the incumbent.  

603. Question: Section L.21 (b)(2) (Page 151), Proposal Content and Page Limitations states: “…The margins may contain headers and footers, but shall not contain any proposal content to be evaluated. … Text in diagrams, charts, tables, artwork, and photographs shall be no smaller than 10 point….” No font type was specified for text in headers, footers, diagrams, charts, tables, artwork, or photographs. May offerors use an Arial type font for text in headers, footers, diagrams, charts, tables, artwork, or photographs?

           Answer:  Yes.  There are no font type requirements stated for text in diagrams, charts, tables, artwork, and photographs but there is a size standard of no smaller than 10 points.  

604.  Question:  SOW 1.0, paragraph 1.2.2, Work Reception and Control.  Statement of Work (SOW) provides the man-hours and dollar limitation for Routine Trouble Calls.  However, no information is found to indicate the limitations for Repairs (man-hours, dollars).  Please provide the man-hour and dollar limitation for Repair work.  Also, is repair work considered Core or IDIQ?

            Answer:  See answer to Question 327.  As stated in SOW 3.1, NPR 8831.2, work beyond the labor hours or dollar limits of a routine trouble call become a repair.  There is no restriction on level of effort for repairs.  See also answer to Question 519.  There is also no dollar limitation for repairs.  Repair work is core for NASA and IDIQ for Navy, see SOW 3.2.1 and 3.2.1.1.
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